
  

 

 

NOTICE OF THE 14TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 14TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
OF THE MEMBERS OF ITALIAN EDIBLES LIMITED (FORMELY KNOWN AS 
ITALIAN EDIBLES PRIVATE LIMITED) WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY, 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024, AT 03:00 P.M.  THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING 
(“VC”)/ OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS (“OAVM”) TO TRANSACT THE 
FOLLOWING BUSINESSES: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company 
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 together with the reports of the Board 
of Directors and Auditors thereon; and 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Akshay Makhija (DIN: 0287252), who retires 
by rotation in terms of section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

3. Appointment of Ms. Sneha Khandelwal (DIN: 10448569) as a Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director of the Company 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules framed 
thereunder [including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force], approval of the Board of Directors 
of the Company, Ms. Sneha Khandelwal (DIN: 10448569), who was appointed by the 
Board of Directors as an Additional Non-Executive Non- Independent Director of the 
Company with effect from January 01, 2024 pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 
of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company and who holds office upto 
the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has 
received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing 
her candidature for the office of Director of the Company, being so eligible, be and is  
 



  

 
 
hereby appointed as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company, 
liable to retire by rotation.” 
 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Italian Edibles Limited 
(Formerly known as Italian Edibles 
Private Limited) 
Sd/- 
Ajay Makhija                   
Managing Director  
DIN - 02847288 

Registered Office:  
 
309/1/1/8 Block No.03, Mangal Udhyog Nagar,  
Gram Palda, Indore - 452020 
CIN: U15141MP2009PLC022797 
Website: https://ofcoursegroup.com/ 

Tel.: +91 73128 62566 

E-mail: italian_edibles@yahoo.com 
  
Date: August 31, 2024 
Place: Indore 

  

https://ofcoursegroup.com/
tel:7312862566
mailto:italian_edibles@yahoo.com


  

Notes: 

1. The details as required under the Companies Act 2013, Regulation 36(3) of 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {“SEBI (LODR) Regulations”} and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India, is also annexed hereto. 
 

2. Pursuant to the General Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
and Securities and Exchange Board of India from time to time, physical 
attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required and general 
meeting can be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio-visual 
means (OAVM). In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and 
MCA Circulars, the 14th AGM of the Members will be held through 
VC/OAVM. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the AGM through 
VC/OAVM only. 
 

3. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), shall be providing facility for 

voting through remote e-voting, for participation in the AGM through 

VC/OAVM facility and e-voting during the AGM. The procedure for 

participating in the Meeting through VC/OAVM is explained at Note No. 20 

below.  

 
4. Pursuant to the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 

facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not 
available for this AGM and hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are 
not annexed hereto.  
 

5. In accordance with the Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings issued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) read with Clarification/ 
Guidance on applicability of Secretarial Standards - 1 and 2 issued by the ICSI, 
the proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered 
Office of the Company which shall be the deemed venue of the AGM. Since 
the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to 
this Notice.  

 
6. Corporate/Institutional Members are entitled to appoint authorised 

representatives to attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM on their behalf and 
cast their votes through remote e-voting or at the AGM. Corporate/ 
Institutional Members intending to authorise their representatives to 
participate and vote at the Meeting are requested to send a certified copy of 



  

the Board resolution/ authorization letter to the Scrutinizer at e-mail ID 
siroyam@gmail.com with a copy marked to the NSDL at AbhijeetG@nsdl.com 
and to the Company at italian_edibles@yahoo.com, authorizing its 
representative(s) to attend through VC/OAVM and vote on their behalf at the 
Meeting, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act. Institutional shareholders (i.e. 
other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 
Resolution/ Power of Attorney/ Authorization Letter etc. by clicking on 
“Upload Board Resolution/ Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab 
in their login. Members of the Company under the category of Institutional 
Shareholders are encouraged to attend and participate in the AGM and vote 
there at. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized 
representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there 
at and cast their votes through e-voting. 
 

7. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is 
higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote, provided the votes are 
not already cast by remote e-voting by the first holder. 
 

8. The Company’s Registrars & Transfer Agents for its share registry is Bigshare 
Services Private Limited with office E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki Vihar 
Road, Sakinaka, Andheri- East, Mumbai- 400072. 
 

9. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of 
the AGM along with the Annual Report 2023-24 are being sent only through 
electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with 
the Company or CDSL / NSDL (“Depositories”). The s copies of this Notice 
and Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 will be sent 
only to those shareholders who request for the same. Members may note that 
the Notice and Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 will 
also be available on the Company’s website www.ofcoursegroup.com 
alongwith websites of the Stock Exchange, NSDL and RTA. 
 
The Company will also be publishing an advertisement in newspapers 
containing the details about the AGM i.e., the conducting of AGM through 
VC/OAVM, date and time of AGM, availability of notice of AGM at the 
Company’s website, manner of registering the email IDs of those shareholders 
who have not registered their email addresses, and other matters as may be 
required. 
 
Members are requested to support the Green Initiative by registering/ 
updating their e-mail addresses with the Depository Participant(s) (in case of 

mailto:siroyam@gmail.com
mailto:AbhijeetG@nsdl.com
file://///Nasmum/msc/ITALIAN%20EDIBLES%20LIMITED/Annual%20Filings/2024/AGM/4.%20Dissemination%20of%20Annual%20Report/NSE_Annual%20Report/Annual%20Report/italian_edibles@yahoo.com
http://www.ofcoursegroup.com/


  

shares held in dematerialized form) or with RTA (in case of shares held in 
physical form). 
 

10. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their 
shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act and Register of 
Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained 
under Section 189 of the Act and relevant documents referred to in this Notice 
of AGM and explanatory statement, will be available electronically for 
inspection by the Members during the AGM. All documents referred to in the 
Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee by the 
Members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. 
September 30, 2024. Members seeking to inspect such documents may send an 
email request to italian_edibles@yahoo.com. 

 
11. Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 
has mandated the Listed Companies to issue securities in dematerialized form 
only while processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities 
certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/exchange of 
securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities 
certificate; consolidation of securities certificates/folios; transmission and 
transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests 
by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR-4, the format of which is 
available on the https://ofcoursegroup.com/ and on the website of the 
Company’s RTA.  It may be noted that any service request can be processed 
only after the folio is KYC Compliant. 

 
12. As mandated by SEBI, securities of listed companies shall be transferred only 

in dematerialized form. In order to facilitate transfer of share(s) in view of the 
above and to avail various benefits of dematerialization, Members are advised 
to dematerialize share(s) held by them in physical form. 
 

13. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making 
nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. 
Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to 
register the same by submitting Form SH-13. If a member desires to opt out or 
cancel the earlier nomination and record fresh nomination, he/she may 
submit the same in Form ISR-3 or Form SH-14, respectively. The said forms 
can be downloaded from the Company’s website at and from the website of 
the RTA.  
 

file://///Nasmum/msc/ITALIAN%20EDIBLES%20LIMITED/Annual%20Filings/2024/AGM/4.%20Dissemination%20of%20Annual%20Report/NSE_Annual%20Report/Annual%20Report/italian_edibles@yahoo.com
https://ofcoursegroup.com/


  

14. Online Dispute Resolution (ODR): SEBI vide its circular dated July 31, 2023 
read with corrigendum-cum-amendment circular dated August 4, 2023 has 
introduced a common Online Dispute Resolution Portal (“ODR Portal”) for 
resolution of disputes arising in the Indian Securities Market between the 
Investors / Clients and Listed companies/ specified intermediaries / 
regulated entities through online conciliation and online arbitration. 
Shareholders can access the ODR platform through 
https://smartodr.in/login. 

 
15. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before 

the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the 
procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM 
through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come 
first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders 
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM 
without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 
16. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will 

be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

 
17. Mr. Mukesh Siroya, Proprietor, M Siroya and Company, Practicing Company 

Secretary (Membership No. FCS 5682, Certificate of Practice No. 4157) and 
failing him Ms. Bhavyata Raval (Membership No. ACS 25734, Certificate of 
Practice No. 21758), has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-
voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 
The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the votes shall be final. 

 
The Scrutinizer after scrutinizing the votes cast through remote e-voting and 
voting during the AGM shall make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report and 
submit the same forthwith to the Chairman of the Company or a person 
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same. 

 
The Results declared along with the consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report shall be 
submitted to National Stock Exchange of India Limited within the time 
stipulated under the applicable laws and shall be hosted on the website of the 
Company and on the website of NSDL. 

 

https://smartodr.in/login


  

The Resolutions set forth in this Notice shall be deemed to be passed on the 
date of the AGM i.e. September 30, 2024, subject to receipt of the requisite 
number of votes in favour of the Resolutions. 
 

18. The Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the 
Company at https://ofcoursegroup.com/annual-report/. The Notice can also 
be accessed from the website of the Stock Exchanges i.e. National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM 
Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the 
Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

19. Members are requested to intimate any change in their contact details, address 
or bank account details (including 9 digit MICR no., 11 digit IFSC code no. and 
core banking account no.) to their respective Depository Participants with 
whom they are maintaining demat accounts. 
 

20. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND 
JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:- 

 
The remote e-voting period begins on Thursday, September 26, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. 
and ends on Sunday, September 29, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module 
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names 
appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-
off date) i.e. September 23, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right 
of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being September 23, 2024. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number 
and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is 
given below: 

https://ofcoursegroup.com/annual-report/


  

Type of 
shareholder
s 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholder
s holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 

NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page 

click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which 

is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to 

enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 

under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 

under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 

website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 

e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 

the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 

register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 

“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.j

sp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting 

system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new 

screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 

your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 

on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 

redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


  

e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 

the meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile 

App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code 

mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

 
 

Individual 
Shareholder
s holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 

login through their existing user id and password. Option 

will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 

further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 

requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 

click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then 

user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able 

to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 

evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 

company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be 

able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider 

for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 

system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user 

can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 

register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com 

and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then 

click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page 

by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from 

a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/


  

page. The system will authenticate the user by sending 

OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 

Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will 

be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 

progress and also able to directly access the system of all 

e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 
Shareholder
s (holding 
securities in 
demat 
mode) login 
through 
their 
depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are 
advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at 
abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login 
can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 
request at  evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 
4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login 
can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33  

 
 

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders 
other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and 
shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


  

 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-
in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once 
you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-
Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 
Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is 
IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** 
then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary 
ID is 12************** then your 
user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the 
company 
For example if folio number is 
001*** and EVEN is 101456 then 
user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 

are given below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your 

existing password to login and cast your vote. 
 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/


  

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will 
need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to 
you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter 
the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your 
password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with 

the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to 
you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the 
attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password 
to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file 
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps 
mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose 
email ids are not registered.  

 
6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” 

or have forgotten your password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares 

in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in 
physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, 
you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat 
account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your 
registered address etc. 

7. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for 
casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

8. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” 
by selecting on the check box. 

9. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com


  

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 
system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL 
e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies 

“EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and 

General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General 

Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on 

“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, 

verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your 

vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be 

displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on 

the print option on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed 

to modify your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) 

are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant 

Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 

signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to 

vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to siroyam@gmail.com with a copy 

marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 

individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / 

Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board 

file://///Nasmum/msc/ITALIAN%20EDIBLES%20LIMITED/Annual%20Filings/2024/AGM/4.%20Dissemination%20of%20Annual%20Report/NSE_Annual%20Report/Annual%20Report/siroyam@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com


  

Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their 

login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 

person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login 

to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 

attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need 

to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User 

Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 

the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions 
(FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders 
available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 
022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Abhijeet Gunjal at 
evoting@nsdl.com 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the 
depositories for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for 
e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy 
of Aadhar Card) by email to italian_edibles@yahoo.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit 
DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of 
Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
italian_edibles@yahoo.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method 
explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 

meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 
3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to 

evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password for e-voting by 
providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility 
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:italian_edibles@yahoo.com
mailto:italian_edibles@yahoo.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com


  

update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in 
order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE 
EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 
 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the 
instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM 
through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions 
through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend 
the EGM/AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected 
with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same 
person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM 
THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through 
VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by 
following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. 
After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join 

meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on 
VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM 
will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company 
will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID 
and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may 
retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in 
the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
  

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better 
experience. 

 
3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a 

good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 
 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or 
through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video 



  

loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches. 
 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send 
their questions in advance mentioning their name demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
italian_edibles@yahoo.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 
 

OTHER INSTRUCTIONS  

I. Speaker Registration:  
Members of the Company, holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 
Monday, September 23, 2024 and who would like to speak or express their 
views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as 
speakers by sending an email to italian_edibles@yahoo.com with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in during the period from Thursday, 
September 26, 2023 (9:00 AM IST) upto Saturday, September 29, 2023 (5:00 
PM IST) and providing their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, 
PAN, mobile number, and email address. Those Members who have 
registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to speak/ express 
their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the 
right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of 
time at the AGM. Due to limitations of transmission and coordination 
during the AGM, the Company may have to dispense with or curtail the 
speaker session. 
 

II. Submission of questions / queries prior to the AGM:  
Members holding shares as on cutoff date i.e. Monday, September 23, 2024 
and desiring any additional information with regards to Accounts/ 
Annual Reports or has any question or query are requested to write to the 
Company Secretary on the Company’s e-mail ID i.e. 
italian_edibles@yahoo.com at least 72 hours before the time fixed for the 
AGM i.e. by Monday, September 30 2024, (3:00 PM IST) mentioning their 
name, demat account no./folio number, e-mail ID, mobile number etc. The 
queries may be raised precisely and in brief to enable the Company to 
answer the same suitably depending on the availability of time at the 
AGM. The Company will, at the AGM, endeavour to address the queries 
from those Members who have sent queries from their registered e-mail 
IDs.  
 

mailto:italian_edibles@yahoo.com.
mailto:italian_edibles@yahoo.com
mailto:italian_edibles@yahoo.com


  

III. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of 
Beneficial Owners as on Monday, September 23, 2024, being the cut-off 
date, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. A 
person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice 
for information purposes only. 

 
IV. All relevant documents referred to in this Notice and the Statement 

pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, requiring the approval 
of the Members at the meeting and the statutory registers which are led at 
the AGM shall be available for inspection by the Members. Members who 
wish to inspect the documents are requested to send an email to: 
italian_edibles@yahoo.com their name, folio no. / client ID and DP ID, and 
the documents they wish to inspect, with a self-attested copy of their PAN 
card attached to the email. Members may note that the Notice and Annual 
Report for FY 2023-24 will also be available on website of the Company at 
https://ofcoursegroup.com/annual-report/ website of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 
www.nseindia.com and on the website of the NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
By order of the Board of Directors 
For Italian Edibles Limited 
(Formerly known as Italian Edibles 

Private Limited) 
Sd/- 
Ajay Makhija                   
Managing Director  
DIN - 02847288 

Registered Office:  
 
309/1/1/8 Block No.03, Mangal Udhyog Nagar,  
Gram Palda, Indore - 452020 
CIN: U15141MP2009PLC022797 
Website: https://ofcoursegroup.com/ 

Tel.: +91 73128 62566 

E-mail: italian_edibles@yahoo.com 
  
Date: August 31, 2024 
Place: Indore 

  

mailto:italian_edibles@yahoo.com
https://ofcoursegroup.com/annual-report/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://ofcoursegroup.com/
tel:7312862566
mailto:italian_edibles@yahoo.com


  

 
 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 102 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
Item No. 03 

The Board of Directors of the Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) 
of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company has appointed Ms. Sneha 
Khandelwal as an Additional Director in the capacity of Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director of the Company with effect from January 01, 2024. Ms. Sneha 
Khandelwal shall hold office upto the date of this AGM and is eligible to be appointed 
as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director, liable to retire by rotation. 
The Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of 
the Act proposing the candidature of Ms. Sneha Khandelwal for the office of Director 
of the Company. Ms. Sneha Khandelwal is not disqualified from being appointed as 
a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given her consent to act as a 
Director of the Company. Further, Ms. Sneha Khandelwal is not debarred from 
holding the office of Director, pursuant to any Order issued by SEBI or any other 
authority. 

 

The information to be provided under Regulation 36 of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard 2 issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, pertaining to the appointment of Ms. Sneha 
Khandelwal as a Non-Executive Non- Independent Director is annexed to this 
Notice. 

 

The remuneration, if any, to Ms. Sneha Khandelwal shall be governed by the 
Remuneration Policy of the Company. The Board of Directors are of the opinion that 
the vast knowledge and experience of Ms. Sneha Khandelwal will be of great value 
to the Company. 

 

The Board recommend the Resolution at Item no. 3 as an Ordinary Resolution for 
approval of the Members. 

 

Save and except Ms. Sneha Khandelwal and her relatives to the extent of their 
shareholding interest, if any, in the Company, none of the other Directors, Key 



  

Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 
3 of the Notice. 
 
 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Italian Edibles Limited 
(Formerly known as Italian Edibles Private 

Limited) 
 

Sd/- 
Ajay Makhija                   
Managing Director  
DIN - 02847288 

 
Registered Office:  
 
309/1/1/8 Block No.03, Mangal Udhyog Nagar,  
Gram Palda, Indore - 452020 
CIN: U15141MP2009PLC022797 
Website: https://ofcoursegroup.com/ 

Tel.: +91 73128 62566 

E-mail: italian_edibles@yahoo.com 
  
Date: August 31, 2024 
Place: Indore 
  

https://ofcoursegroup.com/
tel:7312862566
mailto:italian_edibles@yahoo.com


  

Additional Information required for Item No. 2 & 3 

Details of the Directors seeking appointment at the Annual General Meeting 
[pursuant to Secretarial Standard 2 (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India (ICSI) and Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

Item No. 2 

Name Mr. Akshay Makhija 

Directors Identification Number 
(DIN) 

02787252 

Designation Director and Chief Executive Officer 

Date of Birth 02/05/1989 

Age 35 Years 

Nationality Indian 

Qualification Bachelors in Business Administration 

Brief Profile/ Experience 
(including expertise in specific 
functional area) 

He holds Bachelor’s degree in Business 
Administration from Devi Ahilya 
Vishwavidyalaya, Indore and Master’s 
degree in the field of Management from 
Punjab Technical University, Jalandhar. He 
has more than 14 years of experience in 
Confectionery industry. He looks after the 
overall management of the company 
operations. He specifically looks after the 
exports of products and implementation of 
diverse company operations in India and 
Overseas.  
 

Terms and conditions of 
appointment and re-
appointment 

The Director shall be liable to retire by 
rotation 

In case of independent 
directors, the skills and 
capabilities required for the 
role and the manner in which 
the proposed person meets 
such requirements 

NA 

Date of first appointment on the 
Board of the Company 

26/12/2009 



  

Directorship in other companies 
(excluding Italian Edibles 
Limited) 

- 

Membership/Chairmanship of 
committee of Directors of other 
companies 

- 

Name of listed entities from 
which the person has resigned in 
the past three years  

- 

Relationship with other Directors, 
Manager and Key Managerial 
Personnel inter-se  
 

Mr. Ajay Makhija, Managing Director of the 
Company, is the father of Mr. Akshay Makhija. 
 

No. of Shares held in the 
Company as on 31-03-2024 either 
by self or as a beneficial owner  

55,63,339 

Number of Meetings of the Board 
attended during the Financial 
Year 2023-24  

18 (Eighteen) 

Remuneration last drawn (FY 
2023-24) (including sitting fees, if 
any) 

54,00,000 

Details of remuneration sought to 
be paid  

48,00,000 

 
Item No. 3 

Name Ms. Sneha Khandelwal 

Directors Identification Number 
(DIN) 

10448569 

Designation Additional Director 

Date of Birth 14/05/1989 

Age 35 Years 

Nationality Indian 

Qualification B.Com 

Brief Profile/ Experience 
(including expertise in specific 
functional area) 

Specialisation in Secretarial and finance. 
Comprehensive skills sets and proven track 
records in managing diverse responsibilities. 

Terms and conditions of 
appointment and re-
appointment 

The Director shall be liable to retire by rotation 



  

In case of independent 
directors, the skills and 
capabilities required for the 
role and the manner in which 
the proposed person meets 
such requirements 

NA 

Date of first appointment on the 
Board of the Company 

01/01/2024 

Directorship in other companies 
(excluding Italian Edibles 
Limited) 

- 

Membership/Chairmanship of 
committee of Directors of other 
companies 

- 

Name of listed entities from 
which the person has resigned in 
the past three years  

- 

Relationship with other Directors, 
Manager and Key Managerial 
Personnel inter-se  
 

nil 

No. of Shares held in the 
Company as on 31-03-2024 either 
by self or as a beneficial owner  

- 

Number of Meetings of the Board 
attended during the Financial 
Year 2023-24  

4 (Four) 

Remuneration last drawn (FY 
2023-24) (including sitting fees, if 
any) 

NA 

Details of remuneration sought to 
be paid  

Sittings fees for attending the Board and 
Committee meetings, reimbursement of 
expenses incurred in discharge of their duties. 
 
 

 
 

  



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 



 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

For MAHESHWARI & GUPTA 
        Chartered Accountants 
        F.R.N.: 006179C 

 
 
 
 
CA. SUNIL MAHESHWARI 
Partner 
M.NO:  403346 
PLACE: INDORE 
DATE: 30th May, 2024 
UDIN: 24403346BKALEM6297 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

For MAHESHWARI & GUPTA 
        Chartered Accountants 
        F.R.N.: 006179C 

 
 
 
CA. SUNIL MAHESHWARI 
Partner 
M.NO:  403346 
PLACE: INDORE 
DATE: 30th May, 2024 
UDIN: 24403346BKALEM6297 
 



 



 



 

For MAHESHWARI & GUPTA 
        Chartered Accountants 
        F.R.N.: 006179C 

 
 
 
CA. SUNIL MAHESHWARI 
Partner 
M.NO:  403346 
PLACE: INDORE 
DATE: 30th May, 2024 
UDIN: 24403346BKALEM6297 
 

 

 



ITALIAN EDIBLES LIMITED 

CIN : U15141MP2009PTC022797  
 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024  in lakhs 

Particulars 
Note 
No. 

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

   EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
      Shareholder's funds    
         Share capital 3 1,477.72 171.43 
         Reserves and surplus 4 2,606.01 949.84 
         Money received against share warrants  0.00 0.00 
  4,083.73 1,121.27 
      Share application money pending allotment  0.00 0.00 
    
      Non-current liabilities    
         Long-term borrowings 5 328.90 285.76 
         Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6 0.00 0.00 
         Other long term liabilities 7 35.85 13.92 
         Long-term provisions 8 46.95 0.00 
  411.70 299.68 
      Current liabilities    
         Short-term borrowings 9 1,390.43 1,444.79 
         Trade payables 10   
          (A) Micro enterprises and small enterprises  270.47 374.37 
          (B) Others  719.95 755.77 
         Other current liabilities 11 36.11 10.78 
         Short-term provisions 8 127.88 148.59 
  2,544.84 2,734.30 
               TOTAL  7,040.27 4,155.25 
   ASSETS    
      Non-current assets    
         Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 12   
            Property, Plant and Equipment  1,026.68 345.63 
            Intangible assets  10.70 12.11 
            Capital work-in-Progress  0.00 106.59 
            Intangible assets under development  0.00 0.00 
    
         Non-current investments 13 0.10 0.10 
         Deferred tax assets (net) 6 69.23 46.19 
         Long-term loans and advances 14 259.05 231.13 
         Other non-current assets 15 24.83 49.28 
  1,390.59 791.03 
      Current assets    
         Current investments  0.00 0.00 
         Inventories 16 4,111.95 2,473.70 
         Trade receivables 17 1,069.57 723.44 
         Cash and cash equivalents 18 67.34 22.47 
         Short-term loans and advances 14 394.24 136.02 
         Other current assets 19 6.58 8.59 
  5,649.68 3,364.22 
               TOTAL  7,040.27 4,155.25 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
As per our report of even date 
For Maheshwari & Gupta 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN: 006179C) 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

  
  
  
CA Sunil Maheshwari  
Partner  
Membership No.: 403346  
Place: Indore  
Date: 30/05/2024  

  
AKSHAY MAKHIJA  
Director and CEO  

DIN: 02787252  
 

  
SATYANARAYAN RAWAT  

CFO  
PAN: AWSPR7672K   

 

  
SUNILA KALRA  

Company Secretary  
PAN: DQJPK1172F   

 

UDIN: 24403346BKALEM6297    
    

 

  
AJAY MAKHIJA  

Managing Director  
DIN: 02847288  

 

  

 



ITALIAN EDIBLES LIMITED 

CIN : U15141MP2009PTC022797  
 
 

Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2024  in lakhs 

Particulars 
Note 
No. 

31st March 2024 31st March 2023 

Revenue    
Revenue from operations 20 7,362.01 6,321.20 
Less: Excise duty  0.00 0.00 
Net Sales  7,362.01 6,321.20 
Other income 21 11.46 8.89 

Total Income  7,373.47 6,330.09 
Expenses    

Cost of material Consumed 22 4,672.99 3,888.70 
Purchase of stock-in-trade 23 910.58 1,002.08 
Changes in inventories 24 (224.64) (124.77) 
Employee benefit expenses 25 654.56 516.40 
Finance costs 26 211.05 183.92 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 27 133.32 177.68 
Other expenses 28 560.85 342.79 

Total expenses  6,918.72 5,986.80 
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax  454.75 343.29 

Exceptional items  0.00 0.00 
Profit before extraordinary items and tax  454.75 343.29 

Extraordinary items 29 (43.03) 0.00 
Profit before tax  411.73 343.29 
Tax expenses    

Current tax 30 125.31 108.16 
Deferred tax  (23.04) (35.25) 
Excess/short provision relating earlier year tax 31 0.00 8.17 

Profit(Loss) for the period  309.45 262.21 
Earning per share-in  32   
Basic  3.73 15.30 
Diluted  3.73 15.30 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 
For Maheshwari & Gupta 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN: 006179C) 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

  
  
  
CA Sunil Maheshwari  
Partner  
Membership No.: 403346  
Place: Indore  
Date: 30/05/2024  

  
AKSHAY MAKHIJA  
Director and CEO  

DIN: 02787252  
 

  
SATYANARAYAN RAWAT  

CFO  
PAN: AWSPR7672K   

 

  
SUNILA KALRA  

Company Secretary  
PAN: DQJPK1172F   

 

UDIN: 24403346BKALEM6297    

    

 

  
AJAY MAKHIJA  

Managing Director  
DIN: 02847288  

 

  

 



ITALIAN EDIBLES LIMITED 

CIN : U15141MP2009PTC022797  
 
 

Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended 31st March 2024  in lakhs 
 PARTICULARS 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
A.  Cash Flow From Operating Activities   

 
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items(as per Statement of Profit 
and Loss) 

411.73 343.29 

 Adjustments for non Cash/ Non trade items:   
 Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 133.32 177.68 
 Finance Cost 211.05 183.92 
 (Profit) / Loss on Sale Of Assets (2.15) (0.13) 
 Interest received (2.82) (0.58) 
 Operating profits before Working Capital Changes 751.13 704.18 
 Adjusted For:   
 (Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (346.35) 54.02 
 Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (139.72) 58.27 
 (Increase) / Decrease in inventories (1,638.25) (425.12) 
 Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 15.16 (73.16) 
 (Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances (258.22) (55.89) 
 (Increase) / Decrease in other current assets 2.01 0.18 
 Cash generated from Operations (1,614.22) 262.49 
 Income Tax (Paid) / Refund (88.90) (29.18) 
 Net Cash flow from Operating Activities(A) (1,703.12) 233.31 

    
B.  Cash Flow From Investing Activities   

 Purchase of tangible assets (709.00) (54.55) 
 Proceeds from sales of tangible assets 5.00 23.30 
 Non Current Investments / (Purchased) sold 0.00 0.85 
 Interest Received 2.82 0.58 
 Purchase of intangible assets 0.00 (1.84) 
 Cash advances and loans made to other parties (28.00) 0.00 
 Cash advances and loans received back 0.08 9.92 
 Other Inflow / (Outflows) of cash 46.39 48.91 
 Net Cash used in Investing Activities(B) (682.71) 27.18 

    
C.  Cash Flow From Financing Activities   

 Finance Cost (211.05) (183.92) 
 Increase in / (Repayment) of Short term Borrowings (54.36) 210.84 
 Increase in / (Repayment) of Long term borrowings 43.15 (295.53) 
 Increase / (Decrease) in share capital 2,653.00 0.00 
 Net Cash used in Financing Activities(C) 2,430.73 (268.61) 

    
D.  Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents(A+B+C) 44.90 (8.12) 
E.  Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of period 22.44 30.56 
F.  Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of period 67.34 22.44 
G.  Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents(F-E) 44.90 (8.12) 

    
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
As per our report of even date 
For Maheshwari & Gupta  
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  006179C) 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

  
  
  
CA Sunil Maheshwari  
Partner 
Membership No.: 403346  
Place: Indore  
Date: 30/05/2024  

  
AKSHAY MAKHIJA  
Director and CEO 

DIN: 02787252  
 

  
SATYANARAYAN RAWAT  

CFO  
PAN: AWSPR7672K   

 

  
SUNILA KALRA  

Company Secretary  
PAN: DQJPK1172F   

 

UDIN: 24403346BKALEM6297    
    

 

  
AJAY MAKHIJA  

Managing Director  
DIN: 02847288  

 

  

 
 

Note: 

1. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared by Indirect Method as per AS-3 issued by ICAI. 

2. Figures of previous year have been rearranged/regrouped wherever necessary 

3. Figures in brackets are outflow/deductions 



ITALIAN EDIBLES LIMITED 

CIN : U15141MP2009PTC022797  
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 
 
The previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to conform 
to the current year presentation. 
 
NOTE NO. : 01 
COMPANY INFORMATION 
This financial statements of Italian Edibles Limited (Formerly known as Italian Edibles Private Limited) 

 
Italian Edibles Limited (Formerly known as Italian Edibles Private Limited) is a public company domiciled in India 

Company is located at 309/1/1/8 Block No. 03, Udyog Nagar, Palda, Indore (MP).  The principal place of 
business of the Company is in India. The Company is in the business of manufacturing and selling of 
confectionery items such as Rabdi (Meethai Sweet), milk paste, chocolate paste, lollipops, candies, jellies etc. 
         
NOTE NO. : 02 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
1. Basis of accounting:- 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) including the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical 
cost convention on accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company 
and are consistent with those used in the previous year. 

. 
 

2. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Examples of such 
estimates include provisions for doubtful receivables, provision for income taxes and the useful lives of 

current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes 
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. 
 

3. Revenue Recognition: - 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The Company recognises revenue when it transfers control over 
a product or service to a customer. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a 
significant reversal will not occur. The specific revenue recognition criteria described below must also be met 
before revenue is recognized. Cash received before the sale of goods is recognised as a contract liability. 
 Sale of Goods 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
goods have been passed to the buyer. Sales are presented net of Excise duty collected on behalf of the 
Government, trade discounts and returns, as applicable. 

 Other Operating Revenue 
Any revenue accruing during the normal course of business of the company other than by way of main 
business activity of selling of manufactured items is treated as other operating revenue. 

 Interest Income 
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and 

of profit and loss account. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ITALIAN EDIBLES LIMITED 

CIN : U15141MP2009PTC022797  
 
4. Property, Plant & Equipment :- 

Property, Plant & Equipment including intangible assets are stated at their original cost of acquisition 
including taxes, freight and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation of the concerned 
assets less depreciation till date. 
 
Subsequent costs are capitalized on the carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to 
be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. The 
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All 
repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they 
are incurred. 
 
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet 
date is classified as capital advances under the non-current assets and the cost of assets not ready to use 

 
 
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the date of disposal or retirement. 
 
Company has adopted cost model for all class of items of Property Plant and Equipment. 
 

5. Depreciation  :- 
Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Written down Value 
(WDV) Method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
All fixed assets individually costing Rs. 5,000/- or less are fully depreciated in the year of 
installation/purchase.         
         
Depreciation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognized on a pro-rata basis to the statement of 
profit and loss till the date of acquisition/sale. 
The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 
based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an 
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price 
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
risks specific to the asset.         

         
After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining 
useful life.  
  

6. Foreign currency Transactions: - 
Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are converted at the rates closely approximating 
the rates ruling on the transaction dates. Liabilities and receivables in foreign currency are restated at the 
year-end exchange rates. All exchange rate differences arising from conversion in terms of the above are 
included in the statement of profit and loss. 
 

7. Segment Reporting: - 
The company is operating in one segment only i.e. manufacturing and sale of confectionery items and hence 
no separate reportable segment. 
 

8. Investments: - 
Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date 
on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are 
classified as non-current investments. 
On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly 
attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.  
On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is 
charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss. 
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9. Inventories :- 

Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw 
materials and packing materials are determined on First in First out (FIFO) basis. 
 
Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes 
direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating 
capacity. Cost is determined on FIFO basis. 
 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
 

10. Retirement Benefits:- 
For defined benefit plans, the liability or asset recognized in the statement of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Separate actuarial valuation is carried out for each plan using 
the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses for are recognized in full in the period in which 
they occur in the statement of profit and loss. 
 

profit and loss when the employee renders related service. The Company has no further obligations under 
these plans beyond its periodic contributions. 
 

11. Taxes on Income:- 
Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting year in 
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
 
The deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted for, using 
the tax rates and laws that have been substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets 
or liability arising from timing differences are recognized to the extent there is virtual certainty with convincing 
evidence that these would be realized or payable in future. At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount 
of deferred tax or liability is reviewed. 
 

12. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:- (AS-29) 
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and when a 
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. 
 

 Contingent Liabilities is disclosed in Notes to the account for:- 

(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the 
company or 

(ii) Present Obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.  
 

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statement since this may result in the recognition of the 
income that may never be realized. 
 

13. Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of 
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in the statement of profit and loss in which they 
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds. 
 

14. Cash and Cash Equivalents:- 
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known 
amount of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of 
three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents 
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Note No. 3 Share Capital  in lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2024 
As at 31st March 

2023 
Authorised :   
16500000 (31/03/2023:2500000) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 1,650.00 250.00 
Issued :   
14777151 (31/03/2023:1714287) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 1,477.72 171.43 
Subscribed and paid-up :   
14777151 (31/03/2023:1714287) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 1,477.72 171.43 
Total 1,477.72 171.43 
 
 
Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting 
period 
 

Equity shares  in lakhs 
 As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

 No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount 
At the beginning of the period 17,14,287 171.43 17,14,287 171.43 
Issued during the Period 1,30,62,864 1,306.29 0.00 0.00 
Redeemed or bought back during the period 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Outstanding at end of the period 1,47,77,151 1,477.72 17,14,287 171.43 
 
 
Right, Preferences and Restriction attached to shares 
 
Equity shares 
The company has only one class of Equity having a par value Rs. 10.00 per share. Each shareholder is eligible 
for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, 
the Equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all 
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 
 
 
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company 
 

Type of Share Name of Shareholders 
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
Holding 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
Holding 

Equity [NV: 10.00 ] Akshay Makhija 55,63,339 37.65 8,78,572 51.25 
Equity [NV: 10.00 ] Ajay Makhija 52,92,862 35.82 8,35,715 48.75 

 Total : 1,08,56,201 73.47 17,14,287 100.00 
 
 
Aggregate no. of shares allotted as fully paid up without payment of cash/in bonus and share 
bought back 
 

Particulars 
Aggregate No. Of Shares In 

Last 5 Years 
C.Y. P.Y. 

Equity Shares 
Fully paid up by way of bonus shares 91,42,864 0.00 
 
 
Note: Bonus share having face value Rs. 10.00/- issued on 03/08/2023 in ratio of 16 shares for every 3 shares 
held. 
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Details of shares held by Promoters  
 Current Year Previous Year 

 Shares at beginning Shares at end 
% 

Chang
e 

Shares at beginning Shares at end 
% 

Chang
e 

Promoter 
name 

Particulars Number % Number %  Number % Number %  

Akshay 
Makhija 

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ] 

878572 51.25 5563339 37.65 -13.60 878572 51.25 878572 51.25 0.00 

Ajay Makhija 
Equity [NV: 
10.00 ] 

835715 48.75 5292862 35.82 -12.93 835715 48.75 835715 48.75 0.00 

Meenakshi 
Makhija 

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ] 

0 0.00 190 0.00 0.00  0.00  0.00  

Anjali Makhija 
Equity [NV: 
10.00 ] 

0 0.00 190 0.00 0.00  0.00  0.00  

Nishma 
Vaswani 

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ] 

0 0.00 190 0.00 0.00  0.00  0.00  

Sudhir 
Vaswani 

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ] 

0 0.00 190 0.00 0.00  0.00  0.00  

Jatin Vaswani 
Equity [NV: 
10.00 ] 

0 0.00 190 0.00 0.00  0.00  0.00  

Total  1714287  10857151   1714287  1714287   
 

Note No. 4 Reserves and surplus  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 
  Surplus   
  Opening Balance 821.27 559.06 
  Add: Profit for the year 309.45 262.21 
  Less: Issue of fully paid bonus shares (785.71) 0.00 
  Closing Balance 345.01 821.27 

   
  Securities premium   
  Opening Balance 128.57 128.57 
  Add: Received from IPO 2,273.60 0.00 
  Less: Issue of fully paid bonus shares (128.57) 0.00 
  Less: Cost of increase in capital (12.60) 0.00 
  Closing Balance 2,261.00 128.57 
  Balance carried to balance sheet 2,606.01 949.84 
 

Note No. 5 Long-term borrowings  in lakhs 
 As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

Particulars 
Non-

Current 
Current 

Maturities 
Total 

Non-
Current 

Current 
Maturities 

Total 

Term Loan - From banks       
 Secured 125.46 132.55 258.01 182.27 134.06 316.33 
 Unsecured 83.75 44.92 128.67 9.69 46.72 56.41 
 209.21 177.47 386.68 191.96 180.78 372.74 
Term Loan - From Others       
 Unsecured 50.13 69.56 119.69 5.35 67.47 72.81 
 50.13 69.56 119.69 5.35 67.47 72.81 
Loans and advances from 
related parties 

      

 Loans directors Unsecured 69.57 0.00 69.57 88.45 0.00 88.45 
 69.57 0.00 69.57 88.45 0.00 88.45 
       
The Above Amount Includes       
 Secured Borrowings 125.46 132.55 258.01 182.27 134.06 316.33 
 Unsecured Borrowings 203.44 114.48 317.93 103.49 114.19 217.67 
 Amount Disclosed Under the 
Head "Short Term 
Borrowings"(Note No. 9) 

 (247.04) (247.04)  (248.24) (248.24) 

Net Amount 328.90 0 328.90 285.76 0 285.76 
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a. Terms of repayment 

Name of Loan 
Taken 
in year 

ROI No of EMIs 
Amount 
of EMI 

Primary 
Security 

Collateral Security Guaranteed By Guarantee Amount 

BANKS SECURED                 

HDFC Bank term Loan 1CR 2024 9.91% 36 2,77,622  NIL 

(1) Factory Land and 
buildind situated at survey 
no 309/1/1/8, Palda Indore 
in the name of Akshay 
Makhija and Meenakshi 
Makhija,  
(2) Open residential cum 
commercial plot situated at 
survey no. 395/1 Peki, PH 
no. 26, Palda Indore in 
name of Italian Edibles 
Limited, 
 (3) Residential plot at A9 
Shvi Dham, Khandwa road, 
in name of Anjali Makhija 

Akshay Makhija, Ajay Makhija, 
Anjali Makhija and Meenakshi 
Makhija 

77,73,402.00  

HDFC Bank term loan 
50Lakhs 

2021 9.75% 60 1,11,374  NIL 
Akshay Makhija, Ajay Makhija, 
Anjali Makhija and Meenakshi 
Makhija 

25,06,765.00  

HDFC Bank GECL 900007 2021 9.25% 36 7,08,000  
Entire Current 
assets 

Not Guaranteed  NA  

HDFC Bank GECL 190001 2022 9.25% 

36 starting 
after 
moratorium of 
24 months 

3,54,000  
Entire Current 
assets 

Not Guaranteed NA  

HDFC Bank term loan 
820001 

2021 9.25% 36 86,944  NIL 
Akshay Makhija, Ajay Makhija, 
Anjali Makhija and Meenakshi 
Makhija 

 Closed in year  

HDFC Bank term loan 
820003 

2021 9.25% 36 1,31,761  NIL 
Akshay Makhija, Ajay Makhija, 
Anjali Makhija and Meenakshi 
Makhija 

 Closed in year  

HDFC Bank term loan 
820005 

2021 9.25% 36 1,09,698  NIL 
Akshay Makhija, Ajay Makhija, 
Anjali Makhija and Meenakshi 
Makhija 

 Closed in year  

Bank of Baroda Car Loan 2022 7.10% 48 33,142  
Earmarked 
vehicle 

NIL Not Guaranteed 7,75,489.00  

ICICI Bank car loan 2018 9.70% 60 28,704  
Earmarked 
vehicle 

NIL Not Guaranteed  Closed in year  

Kotak Mahindra car loan 2019 9.50% 60 49,544  
Earmarked 
vehicle 

NIL Not Guaranteed 3,39,582.00  

                  
BANKS UNSECURED                 
Axis Bank Business Loan 2021 15.00% 35 1,42,611  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija  Closed in year  
ICICI Bank Business Loan 2021 15.50% 24 1,21,553  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija  Closed in year  
IDFC First Bank Business 
Loan 

2021 15.00% 36 1,69,772  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija  Closed in year  

IDFC First Bank Business 
Loan 2024 

2024 15.00% 36 2,47,511  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija 69,81,739.00  

         
Kotak Mahindra Business 
Loan 

2021 16.50% 24 2,43,552  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija  Closed in year  

Standard Chartered 
Business Loan 2024 

2024 15.50% 33 1,74,554  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija 48,90,029.00  
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Standard Chartered GECL 2021 9.25% 36 34,281  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija 9,95,464.00  
         
NBFCs UNSECURED                 
Aditya Birla finance business 
loan 

2021 15.50% 36 1,74,554  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija 1,72,328.00  

Cholamandlam Finvest 
Business Loan 

2024 17.00% 36 1,24,785  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija 33,48,531.00  

Fullerton India Business 
Loan 2021 

2021 15.50% 25 2,43,623  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija  Closed in year  

Magma Poonawala Business 
Loan 2021 

2021 16.00% 36 1,23,985  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija  Closed in year  

Poonawala Business Loan 
2023 

2024 16.50% 18 2,22,777  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija 31,80,084.00  

SMFG India Fullerton 
Business Loan 2024 

2024 14.50% 19 3,74,567  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija 57,25,093.00  

Tata Capital Business Loan 2021 15.50% 36 1,14,332  NIL NIL Akshay Makhija & Ajay Makhija  Closed in year  
 
 

b. Continue default of repayment of Loans and interest 
 i. The company does not have any continuing defaults in repayment of loans and interest as at the reporting date. 
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Note No. 6 Deferred Tax  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 
Deferred tax assets   
On account of timing difference in Companies Act and 
Income Tax Act 

46.19 46.19 

Created / (Reversal) 23.04 0.00 
   
Gross deferred tax asset 69.23 46.19 
Net deferred tax assets 69.23 46.19 
Net deferred tax liability 0.00 0.00 
 
 

Note No. 7 Other long term liabilities  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 
Others   
   Security Deposits 35.85 13.92 
 35.85 13.92 
Total 35.85 13.92 
 

Note No. 8 Provisions  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

 Long-term Short-term Total Long-term Short-term Total 
Provision for employee benefit       
Bonus 0.00 14.65 14.65 0.00 14.59 14.59 
Director Remuneration 0.00 2.17 2.17 0.00 15.09 15.09 
ESIC 0.00 0.74 0.74 0.00 0.71 0.71 
Provident Fund 0.00 3.58 3.58 0.00 2.95 2.95 
Salary 0.00 26.42 26.42 0.00 20.16 20.16 
Gratuity 46.95 8.59 55.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 46.95 56.15 103.10 0.00 53.51 53.51 
Other provisions       
Audit fees 0.00 1.26 1.26 0.00 1.89 1.89 
Power and Fuel 0.00 2.09 2.09 0.00 3.72 3.72 
Rent Payable 0.00 0.21 0.21 0.00 0.58 0.58 
Current tax provision 0.00 68.16 68.16 0.00 88.90 88.90 
 0.00 71.73 71.73 0.00 95.09 95.09 
Total 46.95 127.88 174.82 0.00 148.59 148.59 
 

Note No. 8 (a) Current tax provision  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

 Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term 
Income Tax 0.00 125.31 0.00 108.16 
Less: Advance Tax 0.00 (55.00) 0.00 (18.00) 
Less: TDS/TCS 0.00 (2.14) 0.00 (1.26) 
Total 0.00 68.16 0.00 88.90 
 

Note No. 9 Short-term borrowings  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 
Loans Repayable on Demands - From banks   
   HDFC CC secured 1,143.25 1,196.20 
 1,143.25 1,196.20 
Other Loans and advances   
   Credit card  unsecured 0.14 0.34 
 0.14 0.34 
Current maturities of long-term debt 247.04 248.24 
 247.04 248.24 
Total 1,390.43 1,444.79 
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Note No. 10 Trade payables  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at31st March 2023 
(A) Micro enterprises and small enterprises 270.47 374.37 
(B) Others 719.95 755.77 
Total 990.42 1,130.14 
 
 

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule  in lakhs 
Payment date not defined (Outstanding for following periods from due date of Transaction) 
 Current Year Previous Year 

Particular 
Less than 

1 Yrs 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

More than 
3 Yrs 

Total 
Less than 

1 Yrs 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

More than 
3 Yrs 

Total 

MSME 270.47    270.47 358.15 16.01 0.21  374.37 

Others 708.26 2.24  9.45 719.95 732.72 18.84 0.75 3.45 755.77 
Disputed 
Dues-MSME 

    0.00     0.00 

Disputed- 
Others 

    0.00     0.00 

 

Note No. 11 Other current liabilities  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 
Others payables   
Excess Payment received 0.00 5.00 
Advance From Customers Against Sales 14.07 0.00 
Ajay Makhija (Current Account) 0.00 0.00 
GST Payable 4.87 0.62 
TDS/TCS payable 11.14 5.16 
Akshay Makhija (Current Account) 6.03 0.00 
 36.11 10.78 

Total 36.11 10.78 
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Note No. 12 Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets as at 31st March 2024         in lakhs 

General Notes : 
1. No depreciation if remaining useful life is negative or zero. 

2. If asset is used less than 365 days during current financial year then depreciation is equals to w.d.v as on 31-03-2023 less residual value. 

3. Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis in case asset is purchased/sold during current F.Y. 

 

 Assets Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortisation Net Block 

  

Balance 
as at   

1st April 
2023 

Additions 
during the 

year 

Revaluatio
n increase 
(decrease) 

Deletion 
during the 

year 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

through 
net 

exchange 
difference 

Other 
Adjustmen

t (Gross 
Block) 

Balance 
as at   
31st 

March 
2024 

Balance 
as at   

1st April 
2023 

Provided 
during the 

year 

Deletion / 
adjustmen
ts during 
the year 

Balance 
as at   
31st 

March 
2024 

Balance 
as at   
31st 

March 
2024 

Balance 
as at   
31st 

March 
2023 

A Tangible assets              

 Own Assets              

 Land 10.45 542.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 553.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 553.08 10.45 

 Buildings 36.03 24.71 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60.63 31.63 5.19 0.00 36.82 23.91 4.40 

 Plant & Equipments 683.99 248.09 0.00 20.39 0.00 0.00 911.79 393.16 114.51 15.52 492.16 419.64 290.81 

 Furniture & Fixtures 20.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.42 9.99 2.70 0.00 12.69 7.73 10.43 

 Vehicles 81.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -2.85 78.39 58.84 7.61 4.99 61.47 16.93 22.40 

 Office Equipments 16.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.77 12.51 1.34 0.00 13.84 2.93 4.28 

 Others 7.95 0.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8.16 5.15 0.57 0.00 5.71 2.45 2.81 

 Total (A) 856.91 815.59 0.00 20.29 0.00 (2.85) 1,649.36 511.28 131.91 20.51 622.68 1,026.68 345.63 

 P.Y Total 826.48 53.60 0.00 23.30 0.13 0.00 856.91 338.21 173.07 0.00 511.28 345.63 488.27 

B Intangible assets              

 Trademark 25.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25.11 13.84 1.21 0.00 15.05 10.06 11.27 

 Cartoon Characters 4.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.31 3.55 0.18 0.00 3.73 0.58 0.76 

 Software 0.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.54 0.46 0.01 0.00 0.48 0.06 0.08 

 Total (B) 29.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29.96 17.84 1.41 0.00 19.25 10.70 12.11 

 P.Y Total 28.12 1.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29.96 13.23 4.61 0.00 17.84 12.11 14.89 

C 
Capital work in 
progress 

             

 Plant and Machinary 106.59 0.00 0.00 106.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 106.59 

 Total (C) 106.59 0.00 0.00 106.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 106.59 

 P.Y Total 105.64 0.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 106.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 106.59 105.64 

 
Current Year Total 
(A + B + C) 

993.46 815.59 0.00 126.88 0.00 (2.85) 1,679.32 529.12 133.32 20.51 641.94 1,037.38 464.34 

 Previous Year Total 960.25 56.39 0.00 23.30 0.13 0.00 993.46 351.44 177.68 0.00 529.12 464.34 608.81 



ITALIAN EDIBLES LIMITED (F.Y. 2023-2024) 
CIN : U15141MP2009PTC022797  
 

Note No. 13 Non-current investments  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

Non-Trade Investment(Valued at cost unless stated 
otherwise) 

  

Investments in partnership firms (Unquoted)   
In Others   
Investments in capital partnership firms unquoted non-trade 
(Lower of cost and Market value) 

0.10 0.10 

Gross Investment 0.10 0.10 
Net Investment 0.10 0.10 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 0.10 0.10 
 
 

Investments in capital partnership firms unquoted non-trade 
 Share in profits(in %) 

Name of Partners 31/3/2024 31/3/2023 
Italian Edibles Limited 10.00 10.00 
Akshay Makhija 90.00 90.00 
Total Capital in Firm 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00 
 
 

Note No. 14 Loans and advances  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 
 Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term 
Security Deposit     
Unsecured, considered good 42.13 12.17 14.14 17.93 
 42.13 12.17 14.14 17.93 
Loans and advances to related parties     
Unsecured, considered good 214.55 0.00 214.55 0.00 
 214.55 0.00 214.55 0.00 
Other loans and advances     
Unsecured considered good 2.37 157.59 2.45 83.99 
Unsecured Advance for purchases 0.00 224.47 0.00 34.10 
 2.37 382.06 2.45 118.09 
Total 259.05 394.23 231.14 136.02 
 
 

Note No. 15 Other non-current assets  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 
Other Assets   
CST 0.55 0.55 
VAT  21.19 21.19 
Entry tax 3.08 3.08 
MP DIC Machinery Subsidy receivable 0.00 24.46 
Total 24.83 49.28 
 
 
 

Note No. 16 Inventories  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 
(Valued at cost or NRV whichever is lower)   
Raw Material 1,686.87 1,091.45 
Packing Material 1,907.68 1,089.49 
Finished Goods 512.84 257.05 
Traded goods 4.56 35.71 
Total 4,111.95 2,473.70 
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Note No. 17 Trade receivables  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 
Secured, Considered good 0.00 0.00 
Unsecured, Considered Good 948.94 631.19 
Doubtful 120.63 92.26 
Allowance for doubtful receivables 0.00 0.00 
Total 1,069.57 723.45 
 

(Current Year)  in lakhs 
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  

 
Less than 6 

months 
6 months - 1 

year 
1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
years 

Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables 
(considered good) 

686.81 120.44 123.50 16.73 1.46 948.94 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
(considered doubtful) 

0.00 0.17 3.37 15.21 89.60 108.35 

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered doubtful 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.28 12.28 

(v) Provision for doubtful 
receivables 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 
(Previous Year)  in lakhs 
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  

 
Less than 6 

months 
6 months - 1 

year 
1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
years 

Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables 
(considered good) 

441.99 71.99 121.02 0.13 (3.94) 631.19 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
(considered doubtful) 

1.35 1.55 7.26 0.46 69.36 79.98 

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered doubtful 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.28 12.28 

(v) Provision for doubtful 
receivables 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 
 
 
 

Note No. 18 Cash and cash equivalents  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 
Balance with banks   
HDFC Bank Current A/c (10481) 56.68 4.68 
Total 56.68 4.68 
Cash in hand   
Cash in hand 10.67 17.79 
Total 10.67 17.79 
Total 67.34 22.47 
 
 
 

Note No. 19 Other current assets  in lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 
Other Assets   
Prepaid expenses 4.03 4.50 
Excise duty refundable - Export 0.00 1.44 
TDS Receivable From NBFC's 2.55 2.66 
Total 6.58 8.59 
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Note No. 20 Revenue from operations  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Sale of products   
Domestic 4,994.49 4,279.27 
Registered Recipient for Export 782.55 337.56 
Sales (Trading) 934.34 1,011.49 
Sales others 626.48 671.49 
 7,337.86 6,299.81 
Other operating revenues   
Other operating income 3.11 2.38 
Sales of wastage 21.04 19.01 
 24.15 21.39 
Net revenue from operations 7,362.01 6,321.20 
 
 

Note No. 21 Other income  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Interest Income   
FDR 1.52 0.00 
MPPKVVCL 0.93 0.58 
Interest from Party 0.38 0.00 
 2.83 0.58 
Other non-operating income   
Balance Written Off 5.08 0.00 
Other receipts 1.40 8.19 
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets   
  Profit of Sales of Plant 0.23 0.13 
  Profit on Car Sales (Last Year 2022-23) 1.92 0.00 
 8.64 8.31 
Total 11.47 8.89 
 
 

Note No. 22 Cost of material Consumed  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Inventory at the beginning   
Raw Material 1,091.45 686.79 
Packing Materials 1,089.49 1,193.81 

 2,180.94 1,880.60 
Add: Purchase   
Raw Material 4,506.91 3,062.34 
Packing Materials 1,579.69 1,126.71 

 6,086.60 4,189.05 
Less:-Inventory at the end   
Raw Material 1,686.87 1,091.45 
Packing Materials 1,907.68 1,089.49 

 3,594.55 2,180.94 
Total 4,672.99 3,888.71 
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Details of material consumed  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Raw Material   
Consumption raw material 3,911.49 2,657.68 

 3,911.49 2,657.68 
Packing Materials   
Consumption packing materials 761.50 1,231.03 

 761.50 1,231.03 
Total 4,672.99 3,888.71 
 

Note No. 22 Value of import and indigenous material consumed  in lakhs 
 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 

Particulars Value 
%to total 

Consumption 
value 

%to total 
Consumption 

Raw Material     
Imported 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Indigenous 3,911.49 100.00 2,657.68 100.00 

 3,911.49 100.00 2,657.68 100.00 
Packing Materials     
Imported 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Indigenous 761.50 100.00 1,231.03 100.00 

 761.50 100.00 1,231.03 100.00 
 
 

Note No. 23 Purchase of stock-in-trade  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Trading Purchase 910.58 1,002.08 
Total 910.58 1,002.08 
 

Note No. 24 Changes in inventories  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Inventory at the end of the year   
Finished Goods 512.84 257.05 
Traded Goods 4.56 35.71 
 517.40 292.76 
Inventory at the beginning of the year   
Finished Goods 257.05 158.66 
Traded Goods 35.71 9.33 
 292.76 167.98 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories   
Finished Goods (255.79) (98.39) 
Traded Goods 31.15 (26.38) 
 (224.64) (124.77) 
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Note No. 25 Employee benefit expenses  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Salaries and Wages   
Bonus 14.65 14.59 
Direct wages (Manufacturing) 228.48 200.89 
Salary and wages 265.94 165.81 
Gratuity  12.51 0.00 
Director remuneration 96.00 108.00 
 617.58 489.29 
Contribution to provident and other fund   
Contribution to approved superannuation fund 23.03 14.95 
 23.03 14.95 
Staff welfare Expenses   
EPF Administration Charges 0.96 0.84 
Staff welfare 5.48 4.35 
Staff Medical Treatment Expanses 0.09 0.45 
Medical Insurance exp 7.41 6.53 
 13.94 12.17 
Total 654.55 516.41 
 
 

Note No. 26 Finance costs  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Interest   
Interest on long-term loans from banks   
  Unsecured Business Loans 6.35 8.75 
  Secured Term Loans 28.07 32.56 
  Vehicle Loans 1.88 1.54 
Interest on long-term loans from others   
  Unsecured Business Loans 45.26 22.80 
  Unsecured Loans (Directors) 8.29 6.61 
Interest on short-term loans from banks   
  CC Limit 110.74 93.33 
  Credit Card Interest 0.00 2.50 
Other interest charges 4.55 13.02 
 205.14 181.10 
Other Borrowing costs   
Loan processing charges 5.91 2.82 
 5.91 2.82 
Total 211.05 183.92 
 
 

Note No. 27 Depreciation and amortization expenses  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Depreciation on tangible assets 131.91 173.07 
Amortisation on intangible assets 1.41 4.61 
Total 133.32 177.68 
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Note No. 28 Other expenses  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Consultancy 22.05 4.10 
Discount 9.07 13.82 
Freight & Cartage 10.84 3.60 
Freight Outward 24.56 23.53 
Insurance expenses 9.30 7.53 
Interest Income Tax / TDS 14.44 4.98 
Legal expenses 59.94 4.00 
Legal fees 2.41 1.54 
Vehicle running expenses 9.37 6.56 
Miscellaneous expenditure 94.95 39.48 
Auditor Remuneration 0.75 0.70 
Power and fuel 125.63 93.69 
Any other rate, tax, duty or cess incl STT Paid 11.03 11.63 
Repairs to machinery 53.37 32.54 
Repairs to building 30.28 19.92 
Rent 82.87 75.18 
Total 560.85 342.79 
 

Note No. 28(a) Other expenses: Auditor Remuneration  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Statutory audit fees 0.75 0.70 
Total 0.75 0.70 
 
 

Note No. 29 Extraordinary item  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Prior period expense Gratuity (43.03) 0.00 
Total (43.03) 0.00 
 

Note No. 30 Current tax  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Current tax pertaining to current year 125.31 108.16 
Total 125.31 108.16 
 

Note No. 31 Excess/short provision relating earlier year tax  in lakhs 
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 
Income Tax Last Year 0.00 8.17 
Total 0.00 8.17 
 

Note No. 32 Earning Per Share  in lakhs 
Particulars Before Extraordinary items After Extraordinary items 

 
31st March 

2024 
31st March 

2023 
31st March 

2024 
31st March 

2023 
Basic     
Profit after tax (A) 309.45 262.21 309.45 262.21 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 
(B) 

82,88,068 17,14,287 82,88,068 17,14,287 

Basic EPS (A / B) 3.73 15.30 3.73 15.30 
Diluted     
Profit after tax (A) 309.45 262.21 309.45 262.21 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 
(B) 

82,88,068 17,14,287 82,88,068 17,14,287 

Diluted EPS (A / B) 3.73 15.30 3.73 15.30 
Face value per share 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 
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Note number: 33 Additional Regulatory Information  
 
(1) Details of Benami Property held  
 
Current Year 
No benami property held by company. 
Previous Year 
No benami property held by company. 
 
(2) borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets 
 
whether quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial 
institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.  YES 
 
(3) Wilful Defaulter 
 
Where a company is a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender, 
following details shall be given. 
 
Current Year 
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 
Previous Year 
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 
 
(4) Relationship with Struck off Companies 
 
Current Year 
No relationship of company with any struck off companies. 
Previous Year 
No relationship of company with any struck off companies. 
 
(5) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies 
 
Where any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory 
period, details and reasons thereof 
 
Current Year 
No charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period. 
 
Previous Year 
No charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period. 
 
 
 
(6) Compliance with number of layers of companies 
 
Current Year 
Not applicable during the year. 
Previous Year 
Not applicable during the year. 
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(7) Ratios: 
 

Ratio Numerator Denominator 
C.Y. 

Ratio 
P.Y. 

Ratio 
% 

Change 
Reason for variance 

(a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 3.10 1.23 152.03 
Due to increase in 
inventory and trade 
receivables. 

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio 
Long Term Debt + 
Short Term Debt 

Shareholder equity 0.43 1.56 -72.44 Due to Repayment of debt 

(c) Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio 

Earning Before Interest, 
tax, Depreciation & 
Amortisation 

Total principal + 
Interest on Borrowings 

0.00 0.00 0.00  

(d) Return on Equity Ratio 
Earning After Interest, 
tax, Depreciation & 
Amortisation 

Average Shareholder's 
Equity 

0.12 0.26 -53.85 
Due to increase in equity 
on account of public issue 
of shares on premium. 

(e) Inventory turnover 
ratio 

Turnover Average Inventory 2.24 2.80 -20.00  

(f)Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio 

Net Credit Sales 
Average Trade 
Receivable 

8.21 8.42 -2.49  

(g) Trade payables 
turnover ratio 

Net Credit Purchase Average Trade Payable 7.74 3.69 109.76 
Due to decrease in trade 
payables. 

(h) Net capital turnover 
ratio 

Total Sales 
Average Working 
Capital 

1.92 10.04 -80.88 

Due to increase in working 
capital employed on 
account of increase in 
inventory and trade 
receivables. 

(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales 0.04 0.04 0.00  

(j) Return on Capital 
employed 

Earning Before Interest 
& tax 

Capital employed 0.09 0.18 -50.00 
Due to increase in capital 
employed due to public 
issue. 

(k) Return on investment   0.00 0.00 0.00  
 
 
(8) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements 
Not applicable during the year. 
 
 
(9) Undisclosed Income 
 
Current Year 
No such income as declared by the company. 
 
Previous Year 
No such income as declared by the company. 
 
(10) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Not applicable during the year. 
 
 
(11) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 
No transactions during the year. 
 
 
(12) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium 
Borrowed funds have been utilised for the respective purposes. 
Share premium on account of IPO has been utilised as per the purposes listed in prospectus. 
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Note 34 : Disclosures under Accounting Standards 
(i) Details of related parties: 
Description of relationship Nature of Relationship Names of related parties 
Entities in which KMP have significant 
influence 

Director is Partner Nutrabella Foods LLP 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Director Ajay Makhija 
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Director Akshay Makhija 
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Director Sneha Khandelwal 
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Director Anjali Jain 
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Director Devyani Chhajed 
Relatives of Director Relative of Director Anjali Makhija 
Relatives of Director Relative of Director Meenakshi Makhija 
Relatives of Director Relative of Director Nishma Vaswani 
Key Management Personnel (KMP) CFO Satyanaryan Rawat 
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Company Secretary  Sunila Kalra 
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Director Shankar Arya 
Entities in which KMP have significant 
influence 

Common Director 
Savy Infra and Logistics Private 
Limited 

Entities in which KMP have significant 
influence 

Common Director Basan Equity Broking Limited 

Entities in which KMP have significant 
influence 

Common Director Gagan Gases Limited 

Entities in which KMP have significant 
influence 

Common Director Shanti Overseas (India) Limited 

Entities in which KMP have significant 
influence 

Common Director Vardaan Biotech Limited 

Entities in which KMP have significant 
influence 

Common Director KCL Infra Projects Limited 

 
(ii) Details of related party transactions and balances outstanding: 
Particulars Nature of Relationship 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
Transactions during the year    
Director Salary    
Ajay Makhija Director 48.00 54.00 
Akshay Makhija Director 48.00 54.00 
Salary    
Meenakshi Makhija Relative of Director 4.80 4.80 
Anjali Makhija Relative of Director 9.60 9.60 
Nishma Vaswani Relative of Director 6.00 0.00 
Satyanaryan Rawat CFO 6.48 0.00 
Sunila Kalra Company Secretary  1.50 0.00 
Seeting Fees    
Sneha Khandelwal Director 0.60 0.00 
Anjali Jain Director 0.75 0.00 
Devyani Chhajed Director 0.75 0.00 
Shankar Arya Director 0.40 0.00 
Rent Paid    
Ajay Makhija Director 4.80 4.38 
Akshay Makhija Director 2.40 2.04 
Meenakshi Makhija Relative of Director 24.00 2.04 
Interest Paid    
Ajay Makhija Director 1.26 0.94 
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Akshay Makhija Director 7.04 5.67 
Loan Received    
Ajay Makhija Director 0.00 20.00 
Akshay Makhija Director 217.80 69.15 
Loan Repaid    
Ajay Makhija Director 20.00 0.00 
Akshay Makhija Director 224.15 142.82 
Purchase    
Nutrabella Foods LLP Director is Partner 758.39 887.23 
Sales    
Nutrabella Foods LLP Director is Partner 1209.28 0.00 

 
Balances outstanding at the end of 
the year 

   

Loan Taken    
Ajay Makhija Director 15.25 34.12 
Akshay Makhija Director 54.31 54.33 
Director Salary Payable    
Ajay Makhija Director 1.67 15.09 
Akshay Makhija Director 0.50 0.00 
Salary Payable    
Meenakshi Makhija Relative of Director 0.40 0.35 
Nishma Vaswani Relative of Director 0.50 0.00 
Anjali Makhija Relative of Director 0.00 0.43 
Rent Payable    
Ajay Makhija Director 0.16 0.00 
Akshay Makhija Director 0.05 0.00 
Interest Payable    
Ajay Makhija Director 1.13 0.00 
Akshay Makhija Director 6.33 0.00 
Advances    
Nutrabella Foods LLP Director is Partner 214.55 214.55 
Trade Receivable    
Nutrabella Foods LLP Director is Partner 53.32 3.43 
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Note 35 
Additional Notes to Financial Statements 
 
1. The classification of creditors as micro and small enterprise has been given for the parties from whom the 

confirmation has been received regarding their classification as per MSMED Act. The interest on delayed 
payment to such parties, if any, has neither been determined nor has been paid as per verbal mutual 
understanding with the such parties. 
 

2. -  
(Previous Year Rs. 1,08,00,000/-) 

 
3. Payments to Auditors: 

Auditors Remuneration 2023-2024 2022-2023 

Audit Fees 0.75 0.70 

Total 0.75 0.70 

 
4. Loans and Advances are considered good in respect of which company does not hold any security. 
 
5. Provision for retirement benefit has been made on the basis of report by M/s Kandoi & Co, Actuaries, dated 

31/05/2024.  
 

 Current Period Previous Period 

Particulars 

Type of Benefit Gratuity Gratuity 

Country India India 

Reporting Currency INR INR 
 
Reporting Standard 

Accounting 
Standard 15 

(Revised 2005) 

Accounting 
Standard 15 

(Revised 2005) 

Funding Status Unfunded Unfunded 

Starting Period 01-Apr-23 01-Apr-22 

Date of Reporting 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 

Period of Reporting 12 Months 12 Months 
 

Assumptions (Opening Period) 

Expected Return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A. 

Rate of Discounting 7.20% 5.15% 

Rate of Salary Increase 10.00% 10.00% 
 
 
 

Attrition Rate 

For Service 2 years 
and below : 50.00% 

p.a., For 
Service 3 Years - 4 
Years : 30.00% p.a. 
and For Service 5 
years and above : 

20.00% p.a. 

For Service 2 years 
and below : 50.00% 

p.a., For 
Service 3 Years - 4 
Years : 30.00% p.a. 
and For Service 5 
years and above : 

20.00% p.a. 
 

Mortality Rate During Employment 

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2012-14) 

Ultimate 

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2012-14) 

Ultimate 
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 Current Period Previous Period 

Assumptions (Closing Period) 

Expected Return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A. 

Rate of Discounting 7.14% 7.20% 

Rate of Salary Increase 10.00% 10.00% 
 
 
 

Attrition Rate 

For Service 2 years 
and below : 50.00% 

p.a., For 
Service 3 Years - 4 
Years : 30.00% p.a. 
and For Service 5 
years and above : 

20.00% p.a. 

For Service 2 years 
and below : 50.00% 

p.a., For 
Service 3 Years - 4 
Years : 30.00% p.a. 
and For Service 5 
years and above : 

20.00% p.a. 
 

Mortality Rate During Employment 

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2012-14) 

Ultimate 

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2012-14) 

Ultimate 
 

Table Showing Change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of 

the Period 
4,302,546 3,686,492 

Interest Cost 309,783 189,854 

Current Service Cost 863,218 880,269 

Past Service Cost - Non-Vested Benefit Incurred During the 

Period 
- - 

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Incurred During the Period - - 

Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions - - 

(Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments) - - 

(Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment - - 

(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - - 

(Benefit Paid From the Fund) - - 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change 

in Demographic Assumptions 
- - 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to 

Change in Financial Assumptions 
14,189 (432,732) 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to 
Experience Adjustment 64,247 (21,337) 

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 5,553,983 4,302,546 
 

Table Showing Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period - - 

Expected Return on Plan Assets - - 

Contributions by the Employer - - 

Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions - - 

(Assets Transferred Out/ Divestments) - - 

(Benefit Paid from the Fund) - - 

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets - Due to 

Experience Adjustment 
- - 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period - - 
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 Current Period Previous Period 

Actual Return on Plan Assets 

Expected Return on Plan Assets - - 
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets - Due to 

Experience Adjustment 
- - 

Actual Return on Plan Assets - - 
 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current Period 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period 78,436 (454,069) 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Plan Asset For the Period - - 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Recognized in the Statement 

of Profit or Loss 
78,436 (454,069) 

 

Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet 

(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period) (5,553,983) (4,302,546) 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period - - 
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (5,553,983) (4,302,546) 

Unrecognized Past Service Cost at the end of the Period - - 

Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (5,553,983) (4,302,546) 
 

Net Interest Cost for Current Period 

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning 4,302,546 3,686,492 

(Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning) - - 

Net Liability/(Asset) at the Beginning 4,302,546 3,686,492 

Interest Cost 309,783 189,854 

(Expected Return on Plan Assets) - - 

Net Interest Cost for Current Period 309,783 189,854 
 

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current Period 

Current Service Cost 863,218 880,269 

Net Interest Cost 309,783 189,854 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 78,436 (454,069) 

Past Service Cost - Non-Vested Benefit Recognized - - 

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Recognized - - 

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss 1,251,437 616,054 
 

Balance Sheet Reconciliation 

Opening Net Liability 4,302,546 3,686,492 

Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 1,251,437 616,054 

Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In - - 

Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out - - 

(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - - 

(Employer's Contribution) - - 

Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 5,553,983 4,302,546 
 

Current and Non-Current Liability 

Current Liability 859,369 584,680 

Non-Current Liability 4,694,614 3,717,866 

Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 5,553,983 4,302,546 
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 Current Period Previous Period 
 

Category of Assets 

Government of India Assets - - 

State Government Securities - - 

Special Deposits Scheme - - 

Corporate Bonds - - 

Cash And Cash Equivalents - - 

Insurance fund - - 

Other - - 

Total - - 
 

Experience Adjustment 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to 

Experience Adjustment 
64,247 (21,337) 

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets - Due to 

Experience Adjustment 
- - 

 

Expected Expenses to be Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Next Year 

Current Service Cost 1,076,995 863,218 

Net Interest Cost 396,554 309,783 

Expected Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or 

Loss for Next Year# 
1,473,549 1,173,001 

 

Actuarial Gains/ Losses are accounted for in the period of occurrence in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Salary 
escalation & attrition rate are considered as advised by the entity; they appear to be in line with the industry 
practice considering promotion and demand & supply of the employees. 

Average Expected Future Service represents Estimated Term of Benefit Obligation. During the year, there were 

no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. 

 
6. Expenditure in Foreign Currency $4460 Nil 

 For Purchase of Machinery 
 
7. Earning in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil 

 
8. Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary. 
 
Signature to notes 1 to 35 
 
In terms of Our Separate Audit Report of Even Date Attached. 

For Maheshwari & Gupta 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN: 006179C) 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

  
  
  
CA Sunil Maheshwari  
Partner  
Membership No.: 403346  
Place: Indore  
Date: 30/05/2024  

  
AKSHAY MAKHIJA  
Director and CEO  

DIN: 02787252  
 

  
SATYANARAYAN RAWAT  

CFO  
DIN:   

 

  
SUNILA KALRA  

Company Secretary  
DIN:   

 

UDIN: 24403346BKALEM6297    

 

  
AJAY MAKHIJA  

Managing Director  
DIN: 02847288  
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